
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 29, 2023 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 9:00 a.m. Garfield Township Hall – Cecil McNally, Chair, Grand Traverse 
County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 

2. ROLL CALL the member must announce his or her physical location by stating the county, city, 
township, or village and state from which he or she is attending the meeting remotely. 
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
 time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed 
fifteen (15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 Page 1 of 51



 

If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
 

(1)    Minutes of the 5/25/23 Board Meeting     1   
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 5/25/23 Board Meeting    Handout 
(3)       Minutes of the 5/31/23 Special Board Meeting    2   
(4)       Closed Minutes of the 5/31/23 Board Meeting    Handout 
(5)       Minutes of the 6/5/23 Special Board Meeting    3   
(6)       Closed Minutes of the 6/5/23 Board Meeting     Handout 
(7)  Minutes of the 6/20/23 Board Meeting     4 
(8)       Closed Minutes of the 6/20/23 Board Meeting    Handout 
(9)  Resident Council Minutes       5 

   
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT – Cecil McNally       Verbal  

 
9. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  

 
A.  General Information        

(1)    Guest Presentation – John Delossantos, President/CEO 
    JMD Health Care Solutions        Verbal 

(2)       Strategic Planning Update – Robert Long, Plante Moran   Verbal 
(3)       Recording of Meetings       Verbal 
(4)    Activities Update        Verbal 

  
B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – Rose Coleman    6 

 
C.  Business 

(1)    Financials         7  

 

D.  General Discussion 
(1)   

 
E. Medical Staff 

(1)     Mallorie McComb, NP        8 
(2)       Rachel Soles, NP        9 
(3)       Dean Fior, DO         10 
(4)       Summer Hunter, NP        11 

             
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting July 13, 2023    
(2)     May Service Excellence Award      12  

      
10. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION 
(1)  

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 51



 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE MAY 25, 2023 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois    Board  
  Rose Coleman, Lindsey Dood, Darcey Gratton    Staff  
 
ABSENT: Penny Morris          Commission 
         
GUESTS: Patrick Johnson, ForeFront President 
  Dan Bowen, ForeFront CEO/Founder 
  Steve Girard, Warner Norcross & Judd LLP (virtual) 

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally at the Garfield Township 
Hall.    

 
First Public Comment  
Harold Lassers 
 
County Liaison Report – None  
 
Approval of Agenda – Board Chair McNally asked if there were additions, changes or 
corrections to the agenda.  Coleman request to add Consulting Privileges for Dr. Gee under 
Medical Staff (3). Motion was made by LaPointe to approve the Agenda with presented 
changes, seconded by Marois and carried unanimously. 
      
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt 
with by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that 
any item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
discussion.  Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Minutes of the 04/27/23 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 04/27/23 Board Meeting 
(3)  Minutes of the 05/11/23 Board Meeting  
(4)       Closed Minutes of the 05/11/23 Board Meeting 
(5)  Resident Council Minutes  

  
Marois requested to pull (5) for comments.  Motion was made by Marois to approve the Consent 
Calendar with the removal of (5).  Motion seconded by LaPointe and carried unanimously. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – Marois shared that she was really impressed with 
the detailed information on activities, food services and follow-up given in the resident council 
minutes. 
 
Guest Presentation – ForeFront - (Verbal) – Coleman introduced ForeFront President, Patrick 
Johnson and CEO/Founder Dan Bowen.  Johnson gave an update on staffing, overview on 

Page 3 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
1



 

2 
 

progress and highlighted on staffing with retention goals to mirror GTP, opening the café back 
up for employees with grab and go items, as well as partnering up with GTP to provide food for 
the Concert on the Lawn series.   
 
Johnson and Bowen out 9:36am 
 
Activities Update – Coleman shared staffing duties verses what volunteers are capable to do 
for the residents.  Dood shared that there will be a volunteer open house soon. 
 
Survey Report 3/20/23 – Coleman reviewed the results of the State’s investigation of our self-
reported incident.  No citations were received.   
 
1st Quarter Foundation Financials – At the request of the Board, Coleman provided the 1st 
quarter Foundation Financials and answered board members questions. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Coleman reviewed her monthly report for April and answered 
board member’s questions.  The Board noted they would like the staff presentations to continue 
during the board meetings each month.    
 
Financial Report – Dood presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for April 2023 and answered board member’s questions.  Motion made by LaPointe to accept 
the financial operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by Marois and carried 
unanimously. 
 
Girard in 10:03 am 
 
Request to Purchase – Electronic Work Orders Systems – Dood reviewed the request to 
purchase ipads and cases for a new electronic work order system for Environmental Services.    
Three bids were received and the recommended bid was for Amazon based on low price.  
Motion made by LaPointe to approve the bid from Amazon for $7,821.90.  Motion was seconded 
by Marois and carried unanimously.  Dood reviewed the request for startup services from 
Brightly Software as presented for the new electronic work order system.    One bid was 
received and the recommended bid was for Brightly Software as the sole source provider.  
Motion made by LaPointe to approve the bid from Amazon for $9,318.25.  Motion was seconded 
by Marois and carried unanimously. 
 
GTP Foundation Board of Trustee 2023-2024 – Coleman reviewed the 2023-2024 Grand 
Traverse Pavilions Foundation membership roster.  As indicated in the Foundation Bylaws, the  
DHHS appoints annually.  Ten Board members requested to be reinstated along with the 
addition of appointing LaPointe to the Board as a new member.  Marois suggested staggering 
terms going forward.   Motion was made by Marois to appoint the Grand Traverse Pavilions 
Foundation Board of Trustees membership roster for a one year term for 2023-2024 as 
presented, seconded by McNally.  LaPointe obtained.  Motion carried.     
 
Consulting Privileges - Coleman reviewed the request Mark Zook, P.A, Jeffrey VanWingen, 
M.D., and James Gee, M.D., to have consulting privileges as recommended by Medical Director 
Dr. April Kurkowski, M.D.   Motion was made by Marois to approve Zook, VanWingen and Gee 
for consulting privileges, seconded by LaPointe and carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 51



 

3 
 

 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting June 8, 2023 
(2) April Service Excellence Award 

 
General Discussion – Marois requested for meetings to be recorded and posted somehow for 
the public to view.   
 
Second Public Comment  
Claudia Bruce 
 
Gratton out 10:14 am 
 
Motion was made by LaPointe seconded by Marois to go into Closed Session at 10:14 am for 
the purpose of closed session pursuant to section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act, to consider a 
written opinion letter/memorandum of legal counsel which is exempt from discussion or 
disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(g), the Michigan Freedom of Information Act. 
 
Roll Call – McNally – yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois - Yes 
  
Motion was made by Marois to come out of Closed Session at 11:17 am, seconded by LaPointe 
and carried unanimously.   
 
Motion was made by Marois to take the advice of council to authorize a letter to be sent to the 
Board of Commissioners Chair and Administrator in response to their request to the motion the 
BOC made in regards to the DHHS Board.  Seconded by LaPointe and carried unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:20 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
 
 

Rose Coleman, Assistant-Secretary 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 

Page 5 of 51



 

1 
 

                                                                                            
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 31, 2023 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
    
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois   Board 
  Rose Coleman, Lindsey Dood     Staff 
ABSENT:     
GUESTS: Jeffrey Segal of Warner Norcross + Judd (virtual)  
     
The special board meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board was called to order at 9:00 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally in the Board room 
at Grand Traverse Pavilions.   
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
First Public Comment - none 
 
Motion was made by Marois seconded by LaPointe to go into Closed Session at 9:02 am for the 
purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act, to     consider a 
written opinion letter/memorandum of legal counsel which is exempt from discussion or 
disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(g), the Michigan Freedom of Information Act. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Motion was made by Marois to come out of Closed Session at 10:17 am, seconded by 
LaPointe.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion was made by Marois to move to accept the recommendation of the attorney in regards to 
PACE North and the Management Agreement.  Seconded by LaPointe.  Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:18 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
Date: June 29, 2023                 Approved 
                                         Corrected and Approved 

Page 6 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
2



 

1 
 

                                                                                            
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 5, 2023 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
    
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois   Board 
  Rose Coleman, Lindsey Dood     Staff 
ABSENT:     
GUESTS: Jeffrey Segal of Warner Norcross + Judd  
     
The special board meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board was called to order at 8:32 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally in the Board room 
at Grand Traverse Pavilions.   
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
First Public Comment - none 
 
Motion was made by McNally seconded by LaPointe to go into Closed Session at 8:34 am for 
the purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act, to consider a 
written opinion letter/memorandum of legal counsel which is exempt from discussion or 
disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(g), the Michigan Freedom of Information Act. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Motion was made by LaPointe to come out of Closed Session at 9:40 am, seconded by Marois.  
Motion carried. 
 
Motion was made by Marois to move to accept the recommendation of the attorney in regards to 
PACE North and the Management Agreement.  Seconded by LaPointe.  Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:40 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
Date: June 29, 2023                 Approved 
                                         Corrected and Approved 

Page 7 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
3



 

1 
 

                                                                                            
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 20, 2023 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
    
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Gordie LaPointe, Mary Marois   Board 
  Rose Coleman, Lindsey Dood     Staff 
ABSENT:     
GUESTS: Jeffrey Segal of Warner Norcross + Judd (virtual) 
  Steve Wolock of Maddin Hauser (virtual)  
     
The special board meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board was called to order at 8:32 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally in the Board room 
at Grand Traverse Pavilions.   
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
First Public Comment - none 
 
Motion was made by Marois seconded by LaPointe to go into Closed Session at 8:34 am for the 
purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act, to consider a 
written opinion letter/memorandum of legal counsel which is exempt from discussion or 
disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(g), the Michigan Freedom of Information Act and 
pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with our attorney regarding trial or 
settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, Mary John Williams v Grand Traverse 
Pavilions and the Grand Traverse County Health and Human Services Board. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Jeff out at 9:14 am 
Wolock in at 9:14 am 
 
Motion was made by Marois to come out of Closed Session at 10:05 am, seconded by 
LaPointe.  Motion carried. 
 
Roll Call - McNally - yes, LaPointe – yes, Marois – yes 
 
Motion was made by Marois in reference to closed session regarding attorney legal opinion to 
accept the attorney recommendation as it relates to litigation, seconded by LaPointe and carried 
unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:14 am 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
4



 

2 
 

 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Cecil McNally – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
Date: June 29, 2023                 Approved 
                                         Corrected and Approved 

Page 9 of 51



BIRCH RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
May 24, 2023 

 
The Birch May 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 10:40am in the Birch Activity Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
11 Members present were introduced:  
Residents are marked as “X” throughout the minutes 
    
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Traci Williams, RN, ADON – Birch Pavilion 
Sarah Pleva, LLBSW – Social Work 
Kareem Michael, Director of Culinary Operations, Forefront 
 
The April 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance on 05/22/2023 per resident 
request and also offered at the meeting held today. The minutes were reviewed by all in 
attendance, and no changes were noted to be made; all residents present accepted the 
April 2023 minutes as written. 
 
Old Business: 
Items for follow-up from the April 2023 meeting: 

• Kari provided follow-up on the following: 
o X said that she would like a new remote control for her television and to 

have the temperature looked at – Kari did submit a Maintenance Request 
for these items and it was completed.  

o X said that he would give trying an omelet again – and said, “It was very 
good!” 

o X gave outing suggestions of casino trip, fishing trip, baseball games; also 
suggested having summer picnics – Kari shared with everyone at the 
meeting that baseball game outings will be taking place in June & July; 
casino and fishing trips will take place later in the summer; summer picnic 
details are being worked out between Kari & Kareem/Forefront Dietary 
team with more information to come next month. 

o X asked if the AC is on or is it the furnace – Kari asked Tim, 
Environmental Services Director for follow-up:  

▪ “There is air flowing all the time, which is probably what she is 
hearing.  The air temperature that actually comes out of the air 
vents is based on the room temperature and the setting.  If it is too 
cool in her room, the reheat coil will heat up the air.  If it is too 
warm, the reheat coil is turned off, and cool air from the chilled 
water system will cool off the air.” 

Page 10 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
5



• Traci provided follow-up on the following: 
o Traci met with X following the April meeting to discuss his concerns 

regarding his bed. 
o Traci met with X following the April meeting to discuss and write her a 

reminder note regarding her showers. 
o Traci met with X following the April meeting to discuss X asking to have 2 

showers a week. 
o Traci continues to meet with staff regarding the noise level at night, using 

softer lights when entering a room at night. 
 
New Business: 
Kari made the following announcements:  
Special Event Activities for June 

• Thursday June 15: What A Crock – 2:30pm-3:30pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 

• Friday June 16: Breakfast Club – 8:00am-9:30am (Multi-Purpose Room) 
o Residents signed up for this. 

• Sunday June 18: Father’s Day Detroit Tigers Game on the Big Screen & Game 
Day Snacks – 2:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 

• Wednesday June 21: Music Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green – 10:30am (Multi-
Purpose Room or under the tent if the weather is nice) 

• Thursday June 22: June Birthday Luncheon – 12:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) – 
celebrating residents who have a birthday in the month of June 

• Friday June 23: Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am (Multi-Purpose Room) 

• Friday June 30: Bingo Store – 10:30am-12:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 
 
Outings to sign-up for: 
 Wednesday June 7: TC Pit Spitters Baseball Game at Turtle Creek Stadium 
  Board bus at 10:15am (game starts at 11:10am) 
  (resident suggested, X, in April 2023) 

Tuesday June 13: Lunch at Olive Garden – board bus at 11:15am 
  (resident suggested, X, in March 2023) 
 Thursday June 22: Ice Cream at Moomer’s – board bus at 1:30pm 
  (resident suggested, X, in April 2023) 
 
Kari shared from Tim, ES Director, regarding the courtyards – a young man, Xavier, has 
been hired and is starting work on the courtyards with trimming the grass and cleaning 
things up, along with assisting with grounds keeping for the entire campus. Each 
Custodian in the department has also been assigned a courtyard that they will be 
responsible for maintaining over the summer along with Xavier. We will be helping in 
getting flowers and vegetables planted with Activities and Residents but do not want to 
do any of that until the courtyards have been cleaned up. We do have a signed contract 
with a landscape contractor; however the contractor has not been forthcoming on when 
they will be getting started with the renovations…so that is why Xavier has been given 
the task to get working on them. 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 

Page 11 of 51



Kari discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are reviewed 
during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, and today 
we will be reviewing Rights. 
 
Rights:  

• How do you, or your representative, find out about your rights – such as voting, 
making an advance directive, getting what you need? 
One resident said, “I have seen ads on television about our rights.” 
 

• Are you, or your representative, invited to care conference meetings? 
All residents present at meeting said, “yes.” 
 

• Do you know that you can see a copy of the facility’s latest survey inspection results? 
Where is that report kept here? 
Residents present shook their heads “no” when this question was asked. Kari and 
Traci explained to everyone present the process of the facility receiving the typed 
report from the state surveyors following our annual inspection and that copies of the 
report are kept in the Administrative Offices, the Director of Nursing office, at the Front 
Desk and in a binder by the elevator. Kari and Traci also explained that anyone at 
anytime can look at/view the results, and if someone needed help in viewing the 
report, to just please ask and that Kari and Traci would be able and willing to help any 
residents view and read over the report. 
 

• Do you know how to contact the Ombudsman? 
One resident said that she saw the information in the bulletin board across from her 
room but wasn’t sure what or who an Ombudsman is. Kari and Traci explained to all 
residents present the role of an Ombudsman and how that person can be contacted. 
They also explained where to find the contact information for the Ombudsman in the 
bulletin board on the Birch Pavilion, and said they are willing and able to help any 
residents with making calls to contact the Ombudsman. 
 

• Do you know you, or your representative, can look at your medical record? 
One resident said, “Yes. We can look at just like we can look at our medical chart at 
the doctor’s office.” Traci said, “That is correct. And anytime that you would like to see 
your medical record or chart here, I can help you do that and go through it with you 
and/or your family member. Just ask me and I would be happy to help.” 
 

• Have any of you asked to see your record? What was the facility’s response? Did they 
talk to you about it? 
Residents present said, “no.” 
 

• Tell me about the mail delivery here. Is mail delivery prompt and does it arrive 
unopened? 
One resident replied, “You and Linda deliver the mail to me. Thank you for helping me 
open it when I can’t.”  One resident replied, “Thank you for helping me mail out 
packages to family members.” Kari explained to everyone present that when mail is 

Page 12 of 51



delivered to the building, it is sorted out to be delivered. Residents mail is additionally 
marked with their room number then grouped by pavilion for quicker delivery. Once 
that step is done, Kari and Linda receive an email from the receptionist letting them 
know that the mail is ready to be picked up and delivered. Then Kari or Linda will go to 
the front desk to pick up all the mail and packages, and deliver the items to the 
residents. Kari said that if a resident is not in their room, they will leave the unopened 
mail on the resident’s bed or chair; if a resident is in their room, they will hand the 
resident their mail and will offer to help them open it if they feel they will need 
assistance. 

 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

• I had the finest dinner! Shrimp on top of noodles with cheese, it was simply 
delicious! 

• Beautiful presentation of the Reuben sandwich, with the marble bread and Swiss 
cheese, along with the sweet potato fries. It was gorgeous, and it was cut into 
fours and easy for me to pick up and eat. And a ½ of a sandwich is perfect for 
me, no waste. 

• The homemade chicken noodle soup is wonderful. 

• I heard that I can have a cup of coffee at any time of the day. Is that true? 
Kareem and Traci both said yes and to please ask anyone and they can get it for 
her. 

• I love having oatmeal for breakfast, I have it every day. But there is too much 
oatmeal in the bowl that I can’t add milk to it. 

Kareem said, “We make the oatmeal with milk, not water, so you shouldn’t have to 
add milk to it.” 

• Sometimes there is too much spice or pepper in the soup, I can taste it. 
o Kareem said, “We don’t make anything spicy or add anything to make it 

spicy. It could be the flavoring of the herbs, paprika or salt and pepper, but 
we don’t add to make it spicy.” 

X: 

• I have a complaint. I’m gaining weight (said with a big smile on his face). Our 
meals are wonderful, thank you! 

X: 

• The sandwiches are good, but the bread is a little hard to chew sometimes. 

• The flavor of everything is good. Better than the last company by 100%. 

• You need to make biscuits and gravy better. 

• The cheesecake yesterday was very good! 
X: 

• All is good and If I don’t like it, I will ask for something else. 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 

Page 13 of 51



The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

• I am missing one short black sock. Not a pair, just one. 
X: 

• I am missing blue & white pajamas, it’s a 2-piece top and bottom, and the top has 
a pocket on the left side. 

Traci and Sarah said they would follow up with X and X on these items, as well as 
contact Laundry about them. 

X: 

• All is good. My room is clean. All the staff are good to me. 
X: 

• The rolling shower chair is missing from my room. 
Traci said that she would follow up on this. 

X: 

• In my bathroom, the shower wand leaks all over the place. It needs to be fixed. 
Traci said that she would follow up on this.  

 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  
X: 

• My room is too cold. 
All residents present said their room temperature is “good” or “fine.” Traci to follow up 
on X’s room temperature along with the shower wand with the ES department. 
 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

• The elbow pads that the nurses gave me to wear are a life saver. Thank you. 

• What do we do with old hearing aid batteries? Do we just throw them out? 
Traci said that she will find out what is the proper way to dispose of old hearing aid 
batteries and will let X and everyone know. 

Traci shared with everyone that there are two new nurses to the Birch Pavilion that are 
currently orientating – Shawn, who will be working on day shift, and Anna who was 
working on midnight but is now coming to day shift. 
X: 

• The new nurses are more conscience of learning and getting to know each of us. 
They are better than some of the older nurses that take the short cuts. 

 
 
 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 

Page 14 of 51



The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

• It is still pretty slow during the night. 
X: 

• You have to be patient in waiting for them to get there to help you. 

• Is there a new system for the call lights because I have been given a dinger bell. 
X: 

• The staff have been very good at answering my light. 
X: 

• Why can’t the call light go to the nurses’ computers to alert them when we push 
the button? 

Traci explained to everyone present that if and when the call lights need to be 
worked on, each resident is given a dinger bell to ring when they need assistance 
from staff. Traci also said that a new call light system is being looked at and 
researched to replace the current system, so there will be more to come on that. 

 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              
All residents present said they are receiving their showers as needed, as requested, 
and also thanked the staff for helping them with their showers. X asked to have his 
shower and shower wand fixed so that water does not leak out everywhere, and Traci 
said that she would ask the Maintenance Department to come and fix it; X thanked Traci 
for this.   

 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Birch Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

• Sometimes it gets pretty loud. I can hear people talking in the hallway even with 
my door closed. 

X: 

• I am a deep sleeper, but it wakes me up when I can hear the employees talking 
loudly in the hallway at night. 

X: 

• I sleep for 2 hours, then I am awake for a bit, then I sleep again for 2 hours, and 
this goes on all night long for me. I have been like this for years. 

X: 

• I’m sleeping good. I don’t hear anybody or anything at night. 
X: 

• After 10pm, it’s good. I sleep good. Thank you for keeping the volume reminder 
in the newsletter, I really feel that it helps. 

 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 

Page 15 of 51



X: 

• There is too much personal conversation among the staff when they are taking 
care of me. 

Traci thanked X for letting her know this and will address this concern with the staff 
at their daily huddle meetings. 

• It would be nice to have an outdoor porch. It would make a difference for 
everyone to be able to go outside and sit on the porch. 

 X and X both told X that we do have a porch and that it is out the back door of Birch 
Pavilion, and that we also have a courtyard. Traci offered to take and show X the 
porch after the meeting, and X said that she would like that. 

X: 

• Can we do any of the activities like go to the parade for Cherry Festival? 
Kari told X and all present that the Cherry Festival committee announced that they 
will have to re-route the parades this year because of the Union Street bridge that is 
being replaced and that is where we (residents and staff) have sat for years to watch 
the parades. Once the new route is determined, Kari and Tim (Environmental 
Services Director) will need to figure out where we can go to unload the bus to then 
go and sit/watch the parades, but that won’t be determined until closer to July. X 
said thank you and to please keep her in mind. 

• Thank you to Sarah for helping me with all of my upcoming appointments. 
X: 

• I heard that there are going to be big race boats on the bay this summer. Have 
you heard that? Like the old Northport 200 races. 

Kari said that she had not heard that but would look into it. 
 
The next Birch Resident Council meeting will be held on Wednesday June 28, 2023at 
10:30am in the Birch Activity Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over and sign the 
May 2023 minutes, and X said that he would do this. The Birch Resident Council 
Meeting was adjourned at 11:50am by X, seconded by X and X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Kari Belanger, CTRS    Sarah Pleva, LLBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Birch Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Traci Williams, RN     X, Birch Pavilion Resident 
Birch Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 51



CHERRY RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
May 25, 2023 

 
The Cherry May 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 2:30pm in the Cherry Activity Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
10 Members present were introduced:  
Residents are marked as “X” throughout the minutes. 
   
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Marta Pratt, RN, ADON – Cherry Pavilion 
Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW – Cherry Pavilion Social Work 
Kareem Michael, Director of Culinary Operations, Forefront 
 
Kari introduced Grand Traverse Pavilions board member, Mary Marios, to all in 
attendance. Mary thanked everyone present for allowing her to attend their meeting and 
that her role along with the two other board members is to help ensure that all residents 
needs are being met by the staff – nutritional, socially, physically, and living in a safe, 
clean, healthy environment. 
 
The April 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance on 05/23/2023 per resident 
request.  X made a motion to accept the April 2023 minutes as written; X seconded the 
motion. 
 
Old Business: 
Items to follow-up on from the April 2023 meeting: 
X (who was not present at the meeting today), in April said that she “would like to have 
more veggies and less starches at my meals. I would also like to have smaller servings, 
including one egg in the morning and not two, I can’t eat two eggs.  The corn salad last 
night was good, but it needed to have onion. I would like to have onion with all of my 
salads.” 

Kari spoke with Melissa, Registered Dietician, and said that followed up with X on 
her preferences to have smaller servings, only one egg and onions in her salad. 
 

X, in April said, “I have lost 2 nightgowns – one aqua and one pink, both with tiny print 
on them.” When Kari asked X about this at the meeting held today, X said “Marta and 
Emily found them and they have returned. Thank you.” 
 
  

Page 17 of 51



X, at the April meeting said, “The float nurses all give me my medications differently. 
You never know what you’ll get. I like to take my medications with orange juice, and 
they all don’t know that.” Kari asked X if she had seen any improvement with this, she 
replied, “Yes, most of the time. Marta talked with me about it and made changes.” 
 
X, at the April meeting asked, “Is the 90 over 90 event happening this year? I will be old 
enough to attend the event.” Kari told X and all present that she has looked on-line and 
has called the Senior Center to see if this event is happening and was told it is not 
taking place.  

 
X, at the April meeting said, “I am missing Country Gold Saturday Night on television. 
Can you find out what channel it is on?”  Kari told X and all present that she has not 
been able to find it on television, but has found it on the radio, local station WTCM 
103.5. X said that Teresa, one of the staff members, found it on the television in the 
Cherry Activity Room but didn’t know what channel; Kari said that she would speak with 
Teresa to get the channel and more details and would report back to X as Teresa had 
not spoken or told Kari about it. 
 
New Business: 
Kari made the following announcements:  
Special Event Activities for June 

• Thursday June 15: What A Crock – 2:30pm-3:30pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 

• Friday June 16: Breakfast Club – 8:00am-9:30am (Multi-Purpose Room) 
o Residents signed up for this. 

• Sunday June 18: Father’s Day Detroit Tigers Game on the Big Screen & Game 
Day Snacks – 2:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 

• Wednesday June 21: Music Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green – 10:30am (Multi-
Purpose Room or under the tent if the weather is nice) 

• Thursday June 22: June Birthday Luncheon – 12:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) – 
celebrating residents who have a birthday in the month of June 

• Friday June 23: Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am (Multi-Purpose Room) 

• Friday June 30: Bingo Store – 10:30am-12:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 
 
Outings to sign-up for: 
 Wednesday June 7: TC Pit Spitters Baseball Game at Turtle Creek Stadium 
  Board bus at 10:15am (game starts at 11:10am) 
  (resident suggested, X, in April 2023) 

Tuesday June 13: Lunch at Olive Garden – board bus at 11:15am 
  (resident suggested, X, in March 2023) 
 Thursday June 22: Ice Cream at Moomer’s – board bus at 1:30pm 
  (resident suggested, X, in April 2023) 
 
Kari shared from Tim, ES Director, regarding the courtyards – a young man, Xavier, has 
been hired and is starting work on the courtyards with trimming the grass and cleaning 
things up, along with assisting with grounds keeping for the entire campus. Each 
Custodian in the department has also been assigned a courtyard that they will be 

Page 18 of 51



responsible for maintaining over the summer along with Xavier. We will be helping in 
getting flowers and vegetables planted with Activities and Residents but do not want to 
do any of that until the courtyards have been cleaned up. We do have a signed contract 
with a landscape contractor; however, the contractor has not been forthcoming on when 
they will be getting started with the renovations…so that is why Xavier has been given 
the task to get working on them.  
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Kari discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are reviewed 
during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, and today 
we will be reviewing Rights. 
 
Rights:  

• How do you, or your representative, find out about your rights – such as voting, 
making an advance directive, getting what you need? 
Residents initially did not say anything. Kari told everyone present that just like when 
they were living at home, they had rights – the right to vote, the right to see the doctor 
and discuss their medical needs, the right to sleep in, the right to do what they wanted 
to do, etc. and those rights still apply to them today as residents at the Grand Traverse 
Pavilions. Kari said that if any residents would still like to vote in the elections, they can 
do that and if they need help, Emily can assist them; if they want to sleep in, they can 
and can tell the staff that they don’t want to get up. Residents present then began 
nodding their heads in understanding. 
 

• Are you, or your representative, invited to care conference meetings? 
Residents present said “yes” and a couple of them said that they have attended their 
care conference meetings with Marta, Emily and Kari. 
 

• Do you know that you can see a copy of the facility’s latest survey inspection results? 
Where is that report kept here? 
A few residents present shook their heads “yes” and a few “no” when this question 
was asked. Marta explained to everyone present the process of the facility receiving 
the typed report from the state surveyors following our annual inspection and that 
copies of the report are kept in the Administrative Offices, the Director of Nursing 
office, at the Front Desk and in a binder by the elevator. Emily and Marta also 
explained that anyone at any time can look at/view the results, and if someone needed 
help in viewing the report, just please ask and that someone would be able and willing 
to help any residents view and read over the report. 
 

• Do you know how to contact the Ombudsman? 
One resident said that she saw the information in the bulletin board across from her   
room but wasn’t sure what or who an Ombudsman is. Emily explained to all residents 
present the role of an Ombudsman and how that person can be contacted, and that 
the Ombudsman for the Pavilions is named Andrew. One resident said, “oh yes. He 
was here the other day walking around and handing out his card. He has a beard and 
glasses.” Emily also explained where to find the contact information for the 

Page 19 of 51



Ombudsman in the bulletin board on the Cherry Pavilion, and said she is willing and 
able to help any residents with making calls to contact the Ombudsman. 
 

• Do you know you, or your representative, can look at your medical record? 
A few residents present said, “Yes.” Marta told everyone present that all residents can 
ask to see their medical record at any time, and that she would be help - just ask. One 
resident asked Marta if she could review any of the pre-existing conditions that may be 
listed within the medical record; Marta said yes and that she would be happy to meet 
with this resident individually. 
 

• Have any of you asked to see your record? What was the facility’s response? Did they 
talk to you about it? 
Residents present said, “no.” 
 

• Tell me about the mail delivery here. Is mail delivery prompt and does it arrive 
unopened? 
Residents present at the meeting said they have all had mail and packages delivered 
to them here at the Pavilions, and all had received their mail and packages unopened. 
Kari explained to everyone present that when mail is delivered to the building, it is 
sorted out to be delivered. Residents mail is additionally marked with their room 
number then grouped by pavilion for quicker delivery. Once that step is done, Kari and 
Linda receive an email from the receptionist letting them know that the mail is ready to 
be picked up and delivered. Then Kari or Linda will go to the front desk to pick up all 
the mail and packages and deliver the items to the residents. Kari said that if a 
resident is not in their room, they will leave the unopened mail on the resident’s bed or 
chair; if a resident is in their room, they will hand the resident their mail and will offer to 
help them open it if they feel they will need assistance. 
  

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

• Everything is good. The roast beef, the fried eggs over easy that are consistently 
right. The bacon is crispy. 

• Where do you get the names of the entrees? 
Kareem said that the names of the entrees are traditional names, classic names, that 
most everyone would be familiar with. 

• The dining room is total chaos. They don’t always know what they are doing. The 
taking of our orders is goofy. I have breakfast in my room, but lunch in the dining 
room and not everyone takes my order like they should. When Nicki is here, 
everything is good, and when she’s not here it’s not good. 

Marta said that she is working with Korie (from Dietary) in tightening up this process 
so there is less confusion and staff from both Nursing and Dietary know that not all 
residents have all of their meals in the dining room.  
 

X: 

Page 20 of 51



• It is way better than the old company. The cream soup is way better than what it 
was, but the beef barley soup has no taste to it. 

X: 

• Two days ago, the egg I had was slimed. It was yucky. The poached egg needs 
to be cooked a little more and not be slimey, and I should know, I’ve cooked a lot 
of eggs in my day in the diner.  The rest is all good, and I can eat the sausage 
and bacon. 

X: 

• It is tasting good. It is better than before. 

• I want to have more chocolate. 

• The temperature is better. 
X: 

• The banana and orange muffins at breakfast are very good. 

• The crab cakes we had one day were really good too. 
X: 

• The cheesecake yesterday was fabulous! 
X: 

• I don’t want to see more chocolate. I can’t have chocolate. 

• The temperature is good. 

• The staff need to check with me before leaving my room to make sure I have 
everything or if I need help with cutting things up on my plate. 

X: 

• Sometimes the temperature is good and sometimes it is not. 

• The last 3 times there was asparagus on the menu and it was substituted. I didn’t 
like that. 

Kareem apologized for that and that cost-wise from the vendors it is quite expensive;  
explained that he is waiting for there to be more local fresh asparagus available as it 
is coming into season. X thanked Kareem for his response. 

X: 

• The temperature is good. 

• Is there a way to switch up the menu and have a dinner at lunch time because 
sometimes it would be nice to have the soup and salad at lunch. 

X: 

• This is the 3rd food company since I’ve been here. I’m glad you’re here, I think 
you are doing a good job. 

• With my meal ticket, I write the things I want on the ticket but I don’t always get it, 
like bananas. I’m told we have bananas, I write down bananas, but then I don’t 
get bananas and told we are out of bananas. My wife can go to Meijer and buy 
bananas, but we cannot get bananas here. 

Kareem explained that originally when he first ordered bananas, not all residents 
wanted bananas and that he ended up throwing out bananas because they had 
gone bad. He said, “I have been working on the staff with writing items down on the 
continuous shopping list that are getting close to being out of like bananas and they 
are getting better at this, and I will go to the store to purchase what is needed in 
between deliveries from the Gordon Food Service and Prairie Farms vendors as 

Page 21 of 51



they deliver twice a week. If I see that something that I ordered for all of you did not 
arrive on the truck with the deliveries, I will go to the store and purchase those items. 
I spend a lot of time on the phone with the vendors explaining what is ordered, what 
has arrived and what didn’t arrive.” 
 

Emily spoke on behalf of a resident who was not able to attend the meeting today said, 
“The shrimp alfredo we had on Mother’s Day, I’m waiting for it to come back around. It 
was wonderful.” 
 
Kareem thanked everyone for all of their feedback and said, “I let the team know every 
day, the good and the bad. I appreciate all of your patience with us. I hold myself and 
the staff to high standards and we want to keep providing all of you with good, quality 
nutritious meals each day.” 
 
Marta asked all residents present about snacks being offered and delivered during the 
evening or after dinner. X and X both said that they are not offered any snacks, and X 
said that she has a drawer full of snacks in her room that her family provides her. Marta 
shared with everyone that she has been informed that Kareem and the kitchen team are 
going to be offering and providing more hearty snacks like cheese/meat/crackers as 
residents have been asking for this, along with more variety of items. X suggested that 
having a mobile cart that is stocked with different snacks to go around at night to the 
resident’s rooms. 
 
X said, “The board is very committed to the food, breakfast/lunch/dinner. Having good 
quality and nutritious meals each day are very important to everyone. And today, Patrick 
who is from Forefront, came and did a presentation at the board meeting and we were 
all impressed with everything.” 
 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
All residents present at the meeting nodded their heads in agreement, “yes.” 
X: 

• Michelle is the best, she does it all. 
X: 

• When Michelle is not here, the housekeeper only empties the trash and doesn’t 
do anything else. 

 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  
Kari asked X if she has noticed any difference with the heat-film placed on her windows 
as it has been quite warmer and sunnier out, and X replied, “No. Luke has not put it on 
yet.” Kari said that she would follow up with Tim, Environmental Services Director; X 
thanked Kari for doing this. 

Page 22 of 51



X: 

• If I get cold, I cover up with my shawl. 
X: 

• It is cold in the dining room, but I sit by the big windows. 
X: 

• It doesn’t matter, I’m always cold. 
 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
All residents present at the meeting did not have anything for discussion regarding 
nursing care. X said, “Everyone has been very good” and X agreed and said, “They 
have been good to me too.” 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
Marta opened up this discussion with following up with residents that she has been 
running call light reports at different times of the day and when residents have told her 
that they have been waiting an extended period of time to have their light answered. 
Marta shared that she has been seeing that the wait time for call lights in the afternoon 
and evening hours are a bit longer than during the day shift time, and that it coincides 
with the staffing ratios between the shifts but it is getting better. Marta also shared with 
everyone that she has been attending meetings with the Director of Nursing and 
Information Systems that are discussing a different call light system as the pager 
system is not working like it was envisioned and “it’s great to be a part of these 
discussions and there will be more to come.” 
 
X: 

• Sometimes we have to wait longer than others, but most of the time it is pretty 
good. 

X: 

• Staff don’t always help me when I need them to help me. They come in quickly 
and leave, and don’t help me complete the care that I need help with. 

Marta told X that she would follow up with her CNA caregivers. X thanked Marta for 
doing this. 

 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              
All residents present at the meeting nodded their heads in agreement, “yes.” 
   

 
 

7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Cherry Pavilion. 

Page 23 of 51



The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: 

• It’s the staff. They talk too loud at night. 
X: 

• It is now down to two people or residents, both across the hall from my room. 

• There needs to be a universal time for everyone to turn their radios and 
televisions down at night, and also to turn radios and televisions off if people are 
not in their rooms. 

Marta told all residents present that she would continue to talk with the staff at their 
huddle meetings, to keep their voices lowered at night as everyone is sleeping and also 
about the radios and televisions. Kari shared that Birch Pavilion residents feel that the 
reminder that is the in the Pavilions Post each week has helped with the noise level on 
Birch Pavilion at night. 

 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
Marta shared that Pavilions hosted nurse aide students today, some were working on 
Cherry Pavilion they were wearing blue scrubs, and that 5 of the students will be staying 
here at the Pavilions to work. X said that she liked each of the students that she met, 
but in the future can someone please let her know and ask her first if she would like to 
have a student working with her and her primary caregiver. Marta said “of course!” 
 
X asked if there could be a reminder to staff about not wearing perfume or scented body 
lotions. X said, “Some people have been wearing it very heavy and I didn’t think staff 
were supposed to wear it.” Marta said that she would talk with staff about it in their 
huddle meetings; Kari said that she would ask to have a reminder put into the Enews for 
staff and can also put a reminder in the Pavilions Post for residents and staff. X thanked 
Marta and Kari for this. 
 
X said that she can hear her neighbor’s telephone ring in her room, “like it is ringing 
right through the wall. Why is this?” Marta told X she didn’t know why this was 
happening but would talk with the resident about the volume of his telephone ringer. 
 
Kari asked everyone present if they had any ideas or suggestions for activity groups 
and outings. X suggested bowling; X suggested going shopping at Goodwill and lunch 
at China Fair; and X suggested shopping at Twice as Nice resale shop. 
 
Mary thanked all residents again for letting her attend the meeting, and for being so 
talkative and open with not just each other, but with the staff and with her. 

 
The next Cherry Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday June 29, 2023, at 
10:30am in the under the Cherry Tent if weather cooperates, if not then in the Cherry 
Activity Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over and sign the May 2023 minutes, 
and both X and X said that they would do this. The Cherry Resident Council Meeting 
was adjourned at 4:22pm by X, seconded by X. 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Page 24 of 51



 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Kari Belanger, CTRS    X, Cherry Pavilion Resident 
Recreational Therapist                
 
 
________________________________   
X, Cherry Pavilion Resident   
 
 
 
________________________________   
Marta Pratt, RN      
Cherry Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing   
 
 
________________________________ 
Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW – Cherry Pavilion Social Work 
 
 

Page 25 of 51



DOGWOOD RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING 

May 24, 2023 

The May 24, 2023 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Dogwood Resident Council 

was called to order at 10:45 am in the Dogwood Sunroom by Cindi Pobuda. 

All residents were welcomed. 

The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 

The Lord's Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 

4 members present and interpreter Tom Hoxsie were introduced:  

Residents are marked as “X” throughout the minutes. 
 

Staff members were introduced: 

Cindi Pobuda, LBSW — Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 

Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment Naomi 

Rode, RN, ADON — Dogwood Pavilion 

Old Business: 
The April 2023 minutes were distributed to all in attendance and reviewed. X made a 
motion to accept the April 2023 minutes as written; X seconded the motion. Old Business 
from April's meeting: 

X's pillows: X was given three new pillows after the meeting. X reported they are not 
comfortable, not soft enough, he would like a feather pillow. Cindi explained that 
the facility does not have feather pillows. X stated she would ask her daughter to 
bring in one of hers. 

 HS snacks: a review of April snack documentation through the 24th showed snacks 

were offered 42% of the time. It will be the daily improvement focus for the midnight 

shift huddle. 

 X's room temperature: Maintenance raised the temperature in X's zone to 72 degrees. 

He says he is still cold. He was encouraged to open his blinds in the afternoon to warm 

his room up with the sunshine and leave his privacy curtain open some of the time for 

air to circulate. Room temperature will be checked again. 

 X's shower: It is documented that X received her shower April 25th  X requested to 

speak with the cook. Melissa, the Registered Dietician was notified, and the cook 

spoke with X. 

New Business: Resident Rights 

Resident Group Interview Questions: 

Page 26 of 51



Cindi discussed with the attending residents that there are twelve resident rights that 

are reviewed during the group Resident Council meeting held with the State Surveyors 

during our annual survey. Today we will be reviewing Resident Rights. 

Rights: 
 How do you, or your representative, find out about your rights — such as voting, 

making an advance directive, getting what you need? 

     X stated she would talk to the associate. 

 Cindi explained that a copy of the Resident Rights is provided at admission. She noted 

that if anyone would like another copy it would be provided. 

 Are you, or your representative, invited to care conference meetings? 

Residents stated they are. Cindi stated that either the resident or their representative is 
sent an invitation to their care conference. 

 Do you know that you can see a copy of the facility's latest survey inspection results? 

Where is that report kept here? 

X stated that she had never thought about it, but it was probably in the office. Cindi 

explained that there is a copy of the results in the wall pocket by the center elevator 

and a copy available at the front desk. 

 Do you know how to contact the Ombudsman? 

 X said, "No." 

Cindi informed the residents that the information is posted on the bulletin board where 

the Pavilions Post and daily activity schedule are. 

 X asked, "Anytime?" 

Cindi explained they are available during regular business hours. 

 Do you know you, or your representative, can look at your medical record? 

 X said, "l assumed." Cindi explained that residents can ask at anytime to see their 
medical records. If they want copies of anything, it must be requested in writing. 

 Have any of you asked to see your record? What was the facility's response? Did they 

talk to you about it? 

X stated, "Yes, I did. I didn't understand a lot." 

X and X both said, "No" they have not asked to see it. 

 Tell me about the mail delivery here. Is mail delivery prompt and does it arrive 

unopened? 

 X and X both said, "Yes." 

Page 27 of 51



    X then stated the staff opened one without her. X thought it was rude, it was from 

Kelly, was already opened and it irked her. Naomi or Cindi will follow up with her. 

1. Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. The 

floor was opened for residents to respond: 
 All residents stated the food was warm. 

 Regarding HS snacks: X said, "Sometimes." X said, "Most of the time." X and 

X said, "Yes." 

2. Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being 

returned promptly. 

The floor was opened for residents to respond: 
 Residents all agreed there were no complaints regarding the cleanliness of the 

facility. Naomi noted that our housekeepers, Amanda and Gabby do a great job.  All 
residents noted the laundry was returned promptly  

3. Discussion regarding room temperature. 

The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

• X stated, "l use a fan and I am comfortable." 

• X said, "Sometimes. I want to go outside." Cindi asked him if he wanted his bed 

in the courtyard! He laughed. He said he is just excited to go outside in the 

warm weather. 

4. Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

• X stated, "No complaints. The nurses are kind." 

• X stated, "No problems." 

• X expressed, "l have an issue with one nurse." Cindi or Naomi will follow up 

with her after the meeting. 

5. Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 

The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

• X replied, "Better." 

• X said, "l believe so. I don't use it often." 

• X said, "Way too long." Cindi stated, "Again, your average wait time is a little over five 

minutes. I realize you feel like this is too long to wait, but it is very reasonable." X 

responded that staff have other people they must take care of too. 

Page 28 of 51



6. Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

• X stated, "l am reminded." 

• X said, "Good. I want a haircut at the end of May." Cindi will put him on the 

beautician's list. 

7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on Dogwood Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to respond: 

 X stated, "I shut my door." 

 X stated, "Next door they holler when taking a shower." Naomi or Cindi will follow 

up. 

New Business: 
Linda made the following announcements: 

Special Event Activities for June 

Thursday June 15: What A Crock — 2:30pm-3:30pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 

 Friday June 16: Breakfast Club — 8:00am-9:30am (Multi-Purpose Room)  

Sunday June 18: Father's Day Detroit Tigers Game on the Big Screen & Game 

Day Snacks — 2:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) 

 Wednesday June 21: Music Sing-along with Tally & Bob Green — 10:30am 

(MultiPurpose Room or under the tent if the weather is nice) 

 Thursday June 22: June Birthday Luncheon — 12:00pm (Multi-Purpose Room) — 
celebrating residents who have a birthday in the month of June 

 Friday June 23: Catholic Mass with Father Joe — 11:00am (Multi-Purpose 

Room)   Friday June 30: Bingo Store — 10:30am-12:00pm (Multi-Purpose 

Room) 

Outings to sign-up for: 

Wednesday June 7: TC Pit Spitters Baseball Game at Turtle Creek Stadium 

Board bus at 10:15am (game starts at 11:10am) 

(Resident suggested, X, in April 2023) 

Tuesday June 13: Lunch at Olive Garden — board bus at 11:15am 

(Resident suggested, X, in March 2023) 

Thursday June 22: Ice Cream at Moomer's — board bus at 1 :30pm 

(Resident suggested, X, in April 2023) 

Page 29 of 51



Linda shared from Tim, ES Director, regarding the courtyards — a young man, Xavier, has 
been hired and is starting work on the courtyards with trimming the grass and cleaning 
things up, along with assisting with grounds keeping for the entire campus. Each 
Custodian in the department has also been assigned a courtyard that they will be 
responsible for maintaining over the summer along with Xavier. We will be helping with 
getting flowers and vegetables planted with Activities and Residents but do not want to 
do any of that until the courtyards have been cleaned up. We do have a signed contract 
with a landscape contractor; however, the contractor has not been forthcoming on 
when they will be getting started with the renovations...so that is why Xavier has been 
given the task to get working on them. 
Linda asked the residents if there was anything they would like to plant in the courtyards. 

• X thought cherry tomatoes would be nice. She said then residents would be able 

to eat a ripe one when they are out there. She also suggested perennials, both 

flowers and greenery. 

Linda asked for any ideas of things residents would like to do this summer. 

• X announced that on July 1 st and 2nd there is a car show by Building 50.   X 

requested music outside. Linda noted that the concerts on the lawn start in July 

and weather permitting, any music activities scheduled this summer can be held 

outside, under the tent. 

• X suggested making pierogies. 

• X and X suggested having the ice cream truck in house again. 

 Cindi suggested bringing animals in to visit residents like the miniature horse 

or the llamas they have had in the past. 

Naomi suggested having Resident Council outside. 

The floor was opened for additional comments: 

There were none. 

The next Dogwood Resident Council meeting will be held on June 28th at 10:45am. 

Residents agreed to having the meeting outside, weather permitting. Cindi asked for a 

volunteer to read over and sign the May 2023 minutes, and X said that she would do this. 

The Dogwood Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 1 1 :35am by X, seconded by 

X. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Linda Burton , CTRS Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 

Recreational Therapist Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 

Page 30 of 51



 
Naomi Rode, RN Dogwood Pavilion Resident 

Dogwood Pavilion Assistant Director of Nursing 

Page 31 of 51



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- May 25, 2023 

The May meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to 
order at 11:45 a.m... 
 
9 Members interviewed: 
Residents are marked as “X” throughout the minutes. 
 
Staff Present: 
Kristen Packard, Director of Nursing 
Linda Burton, Recreational Therapist 
   
Old Business: 
None 
 
New Business: 
A. Asked the residents if their call lights are responded to in a timely manner. No 
concerns or complaints were noted.  
 
B.  Asked the residents if they were being offered an evening snack. No concerns were 
noted.   
 
C. Asked the residents how the staff treat them.  
 
X stated, “Good.” 
X stated, “Nice.” 
X stated, “I think so.” 
 
D.  Asked residents if they were receiving showers/baths regularly. Residents voiced no 
concerns or complaints. 
 
 
E.   Asked the residents about their rooms.  Asked if they were being cleaned.  Also 
asked how the laundry service was. Residents voiced no concerns or complaints.  
 
X stated, “We have a good team.” 
X stated, “Mine is.” 
 
Discussed the temperature and asked if residents were warm enough and comfortable. 
No concerns or complaints noted. 
 
G.  Asked the residents how the food is here.  No concerns or complaints were voiced.  
 
X stated, “Have a lot of it.  I do enjoy it.” 
X stated, “Varied.” (Was unable to give more detail.) 
X stated, “Very good.” When asked if it was hot, X stated, “Oh yeah, good shape.” 

Page 32 of 51



 
H.  Asked if the residents had any ideas for activities. Asked residents if they felt they 
had enough to do here. No concerns or complaints noted, and residents were nodding 
their heads yes.  
 
X stated, “Playing games.” 
X stated, “I used to work at a front desk at a resort.” 
X stated, “Oh yes.” 
 
Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments. 
Asked residents if there was anything that could be done to make things better for them. 
No ideas or suggestions noted. 
 
X recommended homemade bread, Kristen DON said she has some homemade jam 
that would go good with the bread that she will bring in. 
 
Residents and staff also discussed planting on the patio and doing some gardening.  
Some ideas were zucchini, tomatoes and lettuce. 
 
No other concerns or complaints were noted.  The meeting closed at 12:05 p.m... 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 

                                 
Linda Burton, Recreational Therapist 
 
 
 
 
 
Kristen Packard, RN, Director of Nursing 

Page 33 of 51



dgratton
Text Box
HANDOUT                  by Robert Long





















































Page 34 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
6



2 
 

On May 3, Dood participated in a conference call to discuss Plante Moran handling the 
IRS audit with Heidi Scheppe and Amy Forester and Rob Long with Plante Moran. 
 
On May 3 and 10, Dood participated in an MDHHS small workgroup webinar to discuss 
nursing home reimbursement proposals. 
 
On May 10, Dood participated in an MCMCFC brainstorming session regarding a group 
grant application for nurse recruitment and retention. 
 
Throughout the month of May we had 29 admissions/re-admissions and 34 
discharges.  One Rehab resident transferred upstairs for long term care. 
 
The Wellness Center saw the following patients this month:  Medicare A: 11; Medicare 
Advantage Skilled: 13; Medicare B: Outpatient: 60; Medicare B: Inpatient: 53; Private 
Insurance: Outpatient: 12; Private Insurance: Inpatient:3; Work compensation: 
Outpatient: 1; Private pay: Outpatient: 1; Private pay: Inpatient: 1. Auto: Outpatient: 4; 
Auto: Inpatient:1. 
 
Amy Coneset, Wellness Center Manager, participated as an exhibitor to promote 
physical, occupational, and speech therapy services at The Parkinson’s Summer Forum 
on May 25.  
 
The Wellness Center at the Grand Traverse Pavilions received 2nd place for best 
physical therapy in Grand Traverse County in the My North Red Hot Best 2023 
competition.   
 
For the cottages, in the month of May there were 3 admissions, 2 in-house transfers, 1 
discharges.  
 
Even though the Public Health Emergency (PHE) ended in May, Kari Belanger and 
Linda Burton, Recreational Therapists, completed a total of 69 video chats over 
FaceTime, Google Duo or Zoom.   
 
A few of the activities and special events that occurred in May included: making survival 
thank-you kits for our wonderful nurses in honor of National Nurses Day; making jumbo 
tissue paper flowers for Cinco de Mayo; sticker up coffee cup wraps and seed packets 
for National Skilled Nursing Care Week; putting together flower arrangements for staff 
recognition of LeadingAge recipients during National Skilled Nursing Care Week; 
decorating cookies for an GTP employee fundraiser; having Coca-Cola floats in honor 
of Have a Coke Day; making and enjoying Cherry Cobbler and mini-pizzas; honoring 
and celebrating residents who have a birthday in the month of May at the Birthday 
Luncheon; live streaming of various local church services & Catholic Mass and Rosary; 
playing various card & table games; music performance by John Denner; trivia/fun facts 
and reminiscing; Bingo and Bingo Store; and watching movies and the Detroit Tigers 
baseball games on the big screen television. On May 17, the Forefront Dining Team 
provided a scrumptious BBQ lunch for all residents and staff to enjoy in honor of 
National Skilled Nursing Care Week. 
 
During the month of May, residents enjoyed a shopping trip to Walmart and two lunch 
trips to Cracker Barrel due to the popularity of this local favorite restaurant. 

Page 35 of 51



3 
 

 
Resident Council meetings were held on May 24 and 25 respectively.  
 
Recruitment is underway for the following open positions: CNAs; Universal Workers; 
Environmental Services, Social Services and Licensed Nurses. 
 
Seventeen employees were hired in May –1 PT; 2 Environmental Services;  1 CNA; 4 
Nurse Aides; 4 Universal Workers; 3 Child care Assistants and 2 Administrative 
Assistants.  We received 47 applications in May.   
   
In May there were 4 resignations; 1 Child Care Assistant; 1 CNA; 1 Environmental 
Services; 1 Universal Worker; and 2 terminations; 1 CNA; and 1 Universal Worker due 
to attendance Policy violations. 
 
In May, 10 employee referrals were received. 
 
There were 41 employees receiving the Perfect Attendance Bonus for the 1st quarter of 
2023;  12 CNAs; 3 UWs; 16 Licensed Nurses; and 10 Environmental Services. 
 
There were no new and 1 renewed unemployment claims filed in May. Holibaugh 
responded to 2 questionnaires and participated in 3 telephone hearings. No charges 
were applied to our account for the first quarter of 2023. 
 
In the period of May 15 – June 11 there were 289 CNA hours and 320 Recreational 
Therapist hours worked in Activities.   
 
On May 2, Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director, met with Grand Traverse 
County Commissioners Scott Sieffert and Lauren Flynn for a tour of our facility.  This 
was an opportunity to see the facility first hand. 
 
On May 5, Coggins met with Rick Gibbons of Summit Fire Protection, to inspect the 
Ansul fire suppression system in the kitchen to ensure proper operation with the new 
cooking equipment installed. 
 
On May 10, Comstock Construction completed the work on rebuilding the Hawthorn 
areas that were damaged by the flooding on December 26.  Floor Covering Brokers will 
start replacing the flooring. 
 
On May 30, T. E. S. Construction started the roofing project for Cherry pavilion.  They 
expect a 10 day completion time, so they will be gone prior to the Concerts on the Lawn 
starting on July 6. 
 
On May 30, Coggins met with Scott Miller, state elevator inspector, to inspect the 
elevators at all three cottages.  All three elevators passed, and certificates were 
received later that day. 
 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 51



Page 37 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
7



Page 38 of 51



Page 39 of 51



Page 40 of 51



Page 41 of 51



Page 42 of 51



Page 43 of 51



Page 44 of 51



Page 45 of 51



Page 46 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
8

dgratton
Text Box



Page 47 of 51

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
9

dgratton
Text Box



Page 48 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
10

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box



Page 49 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
11

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

May 2023  

Date: 05/01/2023 
Employee: Teresa Fisher 

Awarded for: 

Teresa was passing through a unit I was working on when she heard a resident I 
was caring for calling out for help. Teresa not only stopped and assisted the 
resident, she also stayed and helped me calm her down, wash her face and 
change her clothes. 

Position: CNA 
Nominated by: Carrie Wilder 

  

Date: 05/01/2023 
Employee: Ann Parker 

Awarded for: 
Recognized by a client for being “very helpful and taught me many exercises that 
I do daily to keep my shoulders working properly.” Thank you Ann! 

Position: Physical Therapist 
Nominated by: Amy Coneset 

  

Date: 05/08/2023 
Employee: Rebecca Graham 

Awarded for: 

Everyone LOVES Miss Becca! The kids absolutely adore her and look forward to 
the days she is there. She goes out of her way to make each child feel special 
and knows how to have fun! Thank you for being AMAZING! You are one of a 
kind! 

Position: Child Care Assistant 
Nominated by: Kathryn Holibaugh 

  

Date: 05/08/2023 
Employee: Lori Kaltenbach 

Awarded for: 

We LOVE Lori! She is so great with all the kids, knows what they like and goes 
out of her way to make every day special and fun! Thank you for being so 
wonderful! 

Position: Child Care Facilitator 
Nominated by: Kathryn Holibaugh 

  

Date: 05/15/2023 
Employee: Kelsea Robinson 

Awarded for: 

Kelsea was recognized by a client for being “very helpful. She taught me how to 
get out of the shower, how to balance, and was very nice!” Thank you Kelsea for 
providing excelling care to your clients! 

Position:  Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant 
Nominated by: Amy Coneset 

 

Page 50 of 51

dgratton
Text Box
12



 
Date: 05/15/2023 

Employee: Heather Gremel 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for coming in and covering a call-in last minute. I appreciate you and 
your willingness to help. 

Position:  Campus Manager, RN 
Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

 
 

Date: 05/22/2023 
Employee: Kyle Kessler 

Awarded for: 
Doing two showers for the unit and helping every co-worker throughout his shift. 
Thank you! 

Position:  CNA 
Nominated by: Chauna Seekamp 

 
 

Date: 05/22/2023 
Employee: Shelly Coddington 

Awarded for: 

Thank you for all that you provide for the Cottages. I placed an order for batteries 
and paper and in 15 minutes I turned around and it arrives, that’s service with a 
smile. Shelly thank you so much. 

Position:  Central Supply Coordinator 
Nominated by: Jeff Valentine 

 
 

Date: 05/30/2023 
Employee: Melanie Farmer 

Awarded for: 

I have never had a supervisor that went out of their way to welcome a new 
employee so much. Melanie checked on me several time throughout the night to 
see how I was doing and if I had any questions or needed anything. She is an 
astoundingly great supervisor. 

Position:  Campus Manager, RN 
Nominated by: Jaemen Winans 

 
 

Date: 05/30/2023 
Employee: Chelsea Nash 

Awarded for: 
Chelsea is flexible and helpful, especially in times of need. Thanks for adapting 
your days to help the team. 

Position:  RN 
Nominated by: Laura Bilbrey 

 
 
 

Page 51 of 51


